ATIONS CCPR

: Distr.
Inter_ngﬂonal covenant GENERAL
on civil and
.. . CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
political rights 4 August 1999

Oiginal: ENGLISH

HUVAN RI GHTS COWM TTEE
Si xty-si xth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1765t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 19 July 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M. MEDI NA QUI ROGA

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (conti nued)

Fourth periodic report of Poland (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 43074 (E)



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Fourth periodic report of Poland (continued) (CCPR/ C/95/Add. 8)

1. Ms. EVATT said she had found paragraph 34 of the report
(CCPR/ C/ 95/ Add. 8) dealing with wonmen's issues somewhat di sappointing. She

i nqui red about the scope of |egislation prohibiting discrimnation against
worren in enploynment in the private sector. Wre renmedies available in cases
of sexual harassnment? She understood that restrictive laws still existed
under which wonmen were prevented fromfully exercising their right to

enpl oynment. There was also the issue of different retirement ages for nmen and
worren entailing a reduced pension for wonen. Was it true that fewer wonen
currently held political office than in the past?

2. Wth regard to domestic viol ence, she asked whether there was

| egi slation in Poland under which wonen could go to court to seek a protective
order restricting the novenent and activities of a person such as a husband or
partner who had perpetrated viol ence against her. Ws it true that a request
by the victimwas required in order to institute | egal proceedings in cases of
rape?

3. There had reportedly been an increase in trafficking in wonen to, from
and through Pol and. She asked whether, following the visit to the country by
the Speci al Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts on vi ol ence agai nst
wonen, its causes and consequences, |egislation addressing that offence had
been enacted and, if so, to what extent it had been invoked to prosecute

of fenders and protect victinmns.

4, Was it true that a married couple nust assunme the fam |y nane of the
husband, unless a declaration to the contrary was made at the tinme of
marriage, and that children, even in the case of an unmarried couple, could
only take the father's name?

5. The grounds for divorce seened to permt courts to turn down
applications where they were not convinced that a marriage had irrevocably
broken down or where they felt that the interests of the children required
that the partners should remain together. To what extent had applications for
di vorce been refused on those grounds?

6. She shared the view of other Committee menbers that restrictions on
abortions, wthdrawal of financial support for contraception and the renoval
of sex education from school curricula could jeopardize the health and even
the lives of wonen.

7. She submitted that the denial of perm ssion to hold the Gay Pride
Festival in Warsaw in 1998 indicated that there was some neasure of
di scrim nation agai nst honosexual s in Pol and.

8. She asked what provision was made to ensure that persons expelled or
deported as illegal immgrants were not returned to a country where they m ght



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 3

be at risk of a violation of article 7 or other provisions of the Covenant.
VWhat steps had been taken to ensure that the non-refoul ement | aw conplied with
i nternational standards?

9. M. AMOR wel comed the progress that had been made in human rights in

Pol and since the end of the former reginme. He had not yet fully understood to
what extent the Covenant took precedence over Polish donestic |aw. According
to article 91 (1) of the Constitution, ratified international treaties
constituted part of the donestic |egal order and were applied directly unless
their application depended on the enactnent of a statute. He asked for
clarification of the |ast clause.

10. He associated hinmself with other nmenbers' comments on the virtua

i npossibility of securing a | egal abortion in Poland and the difficulty of

obtai ning access to contraceptive nmethods and devices. The official figure
for abortions obviously did not reflect the real situation. He understood

that religion and tradition weighed heavily on wonmen when it cane to making
reproducti ve choi ces.

11. He asked whether the restriction placed on rights under article 56 of
the Constitution by article 79 (2) was applicable to all foreigners. 1In other
words, were foreigners whose papers were not in order deprived of certain
procedural guarantees to which they were entitled under the Covenant?

12. M. POCAR said he was inpressed by Poland' s achi evenent in recent years,
including the drafting of a new Constitution. He associated hinself with the
conments by other menbers on the status of the Covenant, gender equality, the
status of foreigners and the issue of refoul enent.

13. He woul d wel come nore details about the regine of accountability of
public officials. Article 2, paragraph 3, of the Covenant did not necessarily
require personal accountability where a violation was commtted by a person
acting in an official capacity; in some cases, State liability sufficed. But
rights and freedons were obviously better protected where officials were held
personal |y accountable for their acts and could not hope to enjoy inpunity.

He referred not only to serious offences entailing crimnal responsibility but
also to minor civil or adm nistrative abuses of authority.

14. M. SO.ARI YRI GOYEN wel comed the action taken in recent years to build a
denocratic systemin Poland that was diametrically opposed to the previous
system of government. In the |ight of the adm ssion in paragraph 34 of the
report that men held nore high-level posts than wonen, he asked what
proportion of seats in the two chanbers of parlianment were held by wonmen and
what steps were being taken to redress any inbal ance.

15. According to reports fromreliable NGOs, nenbers of the police and armed
forces in Poland had failed to comply fully with the provisions of article 7.
He wi shed to know whether torture and cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or
puni shment were recogni zed as of fences puni shable by | aw under the anended
Penal Code of 1997 and, if so, what penalties were prescribed for such

of f ences.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 4

16. There had al so been reports of physical and verbal ill-treatnent of
pupils by certain teachers. He inquired about the scale of the problem and
asked how it was being addressed by the authorities.

17. Lastly, he wi shed to know how the Polish authorities reconciled the
practices of interception of correspondence and surveillance of private
citizens with the provisions of article 17 of the Covenant.

18. Ms. KOWALSKA (Pol and) said that the nunber of abortions in Poland had
obvi ously been underestinmated but it was difficult to obtain realistic
figures. On the other hand, the figures had not been high even when abortion
had been freely available in Poland: about 50 per cent, or one abortion for
every two live births. The use of nodern contraceptives partly accounted for
the recent decline in the ratio. The authorities were aware that abortions
wer e obtained abroad and that illegal abortions were perforned, sonetines
under unsafe conditions, but there were few figures for ensuing nedica
conplications. Although wonen in difficult social and econom c conditions

m ght be deprived of the right to abort, they were offered financial support
and access to shelters and hostels. The Conm ssioner of Citizens' Rights
(Orbudsman) had received no conpl ai nts concerning denial of reproductive
rights or the refusal by doctors to performabortions. On the other hand, a
nunber of women who had been accorded the right to abort because of serious
and irreversi ble damage to the foetus had decided to give birth to a disabl ed
child.

19. A woman did not automatically assume her husband's famly name if she
made no declaration at the time of marriage. She was perfectly entitled to
keep her mai den nane.

20. There were structural differences in the Polish |abour market. A |arge
proportion of wonmen were enployed in such non-productive branches as health
servi ces and education, where wages were |ow for both sexes. Men who held
manageri al posts often earned higher salaries but it was difficult to
establish whether the duties of wonmen occupying simlar posts were such as to
war rant equal pay.

21. The Orbudsman had received a nunber of conplaints regarding inequalities
bet ween men and wonen during the period from 1988 to 1999. |In the case of
conpl ai nts concerni ng access to contraceptive methods and devi ces, the nost
conmon barrier was financial. The Orbudsman had witten to the Mnistry of
Heal t h about the problem but no positive response had been received as yet.
Anot her topic was the right of women to study in the all-male arny
universities. It had previously been argued that social conditions in the
universities were inappropriate for wonen but that argunent no | onger held
sway and a favourable outcone was expected in the near future. More than

300, 000 petitions had been received by the Orbudsman in the period under
review, including sone 40,000 in 1998. Most of them concerned | abour [|aw,
soci al insurance, business matters, taxes, adm nistration, justice and
prosecuti on agencies. In response to the petitions, over 130,000 nessages had
been sent to ministries, institutions and agencies urging themto address the
i ssues raised.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 5

22. There had been cases of violence in schools but they were not covered by
laws relating to education and cases of prosecution of teachers were rare.
However, the educational reforns that were to come into effect on

1 Septenber 1999 woul d address the problem for exanple through the
establishnment of a parents' council in each school

23. M. STRUM NSKI (Poland) said that the new | egi sl ati on on pensions

i ntroduced in Decenber 1998 did not really discrimnate agai nst wonen.

Al t hough the normal retirenent age was 65 for nmen and 60 for wonen, there was
nothing to prevent wonen from continuing to work until 65 if they so w shed.
The statutory difference was intended to reflect differences between the sexes
in terms of the procreative and nurturing functions performed by wonen. Men
in sonme occupations, for exanple lorry drivers, also enjoyed protection for

bi ol ogi cal reasons in the form of m nimum working hours. There had been no
of ficial survey of public opinion on the pension system However, the
parliament had been widely consulted and it was generally accepted that
between 70 and 75 per cent of wonen preferred the new system

24, It could not be denied that, in general, women earned | ess than men in
Pol and. The reasons were sinple: nost wonen preferred to work shorter hours,
or not to work at all, in order to devote nore tine to their famly. On the

ot her hand, sonme Polish busi nesswonmen undoubt edly earned higher salaries than
their husbands. There was no di scrimnation agai nst women who worked the same
hours as nmen and nmaintained the same | evel of productivity.

25. He confirnmed having seen in the national and regional press job
advertisenments for femal e enpl oyees who were not pregnant. However, that was
the exception rather than the rule and thus not a major concern. |In any case

what was the solution? Any attenpt to place restrictions on job
advertisenents would be an infringenment of the right to freedom of expression
There were equal enploynment opportunities for nmen and wonen.

26. It was illegal to refuse wonen enployment in connection with maternity
| eave. Conplaints on that score could be addressed to the | abour courts or
t he Conmi ssioner of Citizens' Rights (Orbudsman). Likew se, it was against
the law to refuse enploynment on the grounds of sexual orientation. 1In
practi ce, honosexual s sonmetines encountered problems in that regard, but the
situation was inproving year by year

27. M. LEWANDOWEKI (Poland), wishing to clarify a nunber of issues raised
by the Committee, drew attention to article 37 of the Polish Constitution
according to which foreigners basically enjoyed the sanme freedonms and
guarantees as Polish nationals, subject to exceptions defined by |aw.
Furthernore, foreigners were afforded the additional protection of politica
asyl um and refugee status under article 56 of the Constitution. They could
not file a constitutional conplaint with regard to those matters; in
accordance with article 79 (z), however, there was nothing to prevent them

| odgi ng conplaints relating to other issues.

28. The principle of non-refoul ement was enshrined in Polish |egislation
Pol and had ratified the Convention relating to the Status of Refugees in 1991
and had made the necessary anmendnents to its Aliens Act. The wording of
Article 53 of the anmended Act reflected that of article 33 of the Convention



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 6

and provided the same guarantees as article 7 of the Covenant and article 3 of
the Convention against Torture and OQther Cruel, Inhuman or Degradi ng Treat ment
or Puni shnent.

29. Earlier he had nentioned the fact that article 13 of the Covenant did

not cover people held in refugee centres; it applied only to people lawfully
present in the territory of the contracting parties. However, under Polish

| egi slation, both legal and illegal inmmgrants were guaranteed due process;

even when held in detention for 48 hours, they were entitled to file a

conpl aint and thereby ensure that the | awful ness of the detention order was

i nvesti gat ed.

30. He coul d not provide accurate figures on the nunber of people returning
to Pol and under the Polish-German readm ssion agreenment. He reckoned that
approximately 50 per cent of returnees were transferred to other countries,

i ncludi ng Lithuania and Ukraine; 5 to 10 per cent (usually from Af ghani stan
and Sri Lanka) remained in Poland on grounds of non-refoul enent; the rest
could apply for refugee status.

31. There was no differentiation between the sexes in exam ning applications
for Polish citizenship, as was borne out by article 10 of the Polish
Nationality Act, which referred to “the foreigner contracting marriage with a
person hol ding Polish nationality”.

32. One of the principles underlying the Constitution was that any Polish
citizen could return to Poland. The repatriation programre referred to by
some Committee nmenbers applied to people of Polish origin who, for sone

hi stori cal reason, had so far been denied the opportunity to return to Pol and
and to apply for citizenship (i.e. people fromthe former Soviet Union).

33. M. LAPTAS (Poland), replying to questions concerning the execution of
penalties and the treatnent of convicted and unconvicted prisoners, drew
attention to article 40 of the Constitution, which prohibited ill-treatnent.
That principle, as well as the principle of due respect for human dignity, was
enshrined in the new Puni shment Execution Code, which | aw enforcement officers
were obliged to comply with. Violations of the Code constituted offences
carrying a penalty of three to five years' inprisonnent.

34. Conditions in Polish prisons were not good, mainly because the buildings
were old and badly in need of repair. It was essential to provide adequate
living space for prisoners and to inprove their general conditions by ensuring
that they had access to certain facilities (television, radio, conputer) and
to recreational activities. In 1994, the Central Prison Service had | aunched
an i nvestnent and noderni zati on programe for prisons, to be conmpleted by the
year 2000.

35. In 1998, 8,786 conplaints had been fil ed against prison authorities, and
in 265 cases the conplaints had been found to be justified. The statistics he
was referring to had been provided by the Central Prison Service and cane from
a nunber of sources. Prisoners could address their conplaints either directly
to the prison authorities or to nmenbers of parliament, NGOs, public
prosecutors and the Onmbudsman, who would forward themto the Central Prison
Service for investigation.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 7

36. Wth regard to conpl ai nts about police behaviour, between January 1995
and Decenber 1998 a total of 2,639 crimnal cases had been brought before the
courts. For instance, there had been 35 conpl ai nts about the unlawful use of
firearnms involving 32 police officers; they had resulted in three convictions.
During the sane reporting period it had been found necessary to take

di sciplinary measures in 1,685 cases, resulting in the inposition of penalties
and numerous di sm ssal s.

37. Ms. ZIORKIEWCZ (Pol and), replying to queries regarding |legislation on
rape, confirmed that, under the new Penal Code the penalty for rape had been
reduced by conparison with the 1969 Code. That was in |line with the genera
trend towards the liberalization of punishment in Poland. Nonetheless, under
the new Code, rape was still considered as one of the nobst serious crinmes and
carried a penalty of up to 12 years' inprisonnent. |If the Commttee was not
satisfied with that answer, she could provide further witten information on
the subject in due course.

38. There were no obstacles to Poland's ratification of the Second Optiona
Protocol to the Covenant since capital punishment was not permitted under
Polish crimnal |aw, even during wartinme. However, as the ratification
procedures had not yet got under way, for the reasons outlined earlier by her
del egation, she was not in a position to say whether Poland was |ikely to nmake
any reservations to the Protocol

39. Ms. JANI SZEWSKA (Pol and), providing additional information on the
status of the Covenant vis-a-vis Polish |egislation, said that pursuant to
article 91 (1) of the Constitution, international agreenents ratified by

Pol and and published in the Journal of Laws forned part of domestic

| egi sl ati on and could be applied in the courts. However, when the
international laws in question were not self-executing, Poland was conpell ed
to introduce new | egislation, as also provided for under article 91, of the

Consti tution. Since, for the nost part, the provisions of internationa
agreenents could be applied directly in the Polish courts, there was rarely a
need for new legislation. It was worth noting that the Constitution referred

to international agreements only and not to customary |law. Furthernore, in
Pol and, international agreements took precedence over domestic law in the
event of a discrepancy between the two.

40. Respondi ng to queries about conditions in institutions for young

of fenders, she said that, since the subm ssion of the report, new | egislation
had been enacted with a view to reorgani zing and inproving living conditions
in such institutions. A distinction was now drawn between correctiona
institutions for convicted of fenders and youth shelters, where young people
were detained for the duration of court proceedings. A number of guarantees
were provi ded by the new | egislation, including the right to decent |iving
conditions, due respect for human dignity, the right to contact one's famly,
freedom of correspondence, the right to | odge conpl aints against the officials
runni ng such institutions and the right to bring proceedi ngs agai nst them

41. The Governnent had al so taken a number of steps to facilitate the
i npl enmentation of |egislation, such as reducing the number of youths housed in
such institutions and dissem nating information on their rights.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 8

42. Ms. JANI SZEWSKA (Pol and), in reply to question 3 of the list of issues,
said that the provisions of chapter XI of the Constitution governed measures
to be taken in a state of energency, and since 1980 no new neasures had been

introduced. In reply to question 4, she recalled that the Conmittee had
reviewed only one case alleging a human rights violation in Poland and had
eventual |y decided that no violation had occurred. |In the Iight of that

situation, there seened to be no grounds for adopting enabling |legislation to
i ncorporate decisions of the Conmttee into the national |egal order. The
Committee's Views had been debated in the Polish parlianent’s Comm ssion of
Admi ni stration, which had found no reason to change existing law in that
particul ar respect. On the other hand, the European Court of Human Ri ghts had
rul ed agai nst Pol and in several cases that had been brought before it, and
there was thus need to devise a procedure for amending the law to take account
of those rulings.

43. In response to questions 9 and 10, she said that in 1995 changes had
been introduced in the | aw governing pre-trial detention. The system whereby
a person charged with a crimnal offence was automatically placed in detention
had now been abolished. Since June 1996, orders for such detention and for
the extension of its duration could only be issued by the courts. The length
of pre-trial detention could not exceed two years.

44, Ms. ZIORKIEWCZ (Pol and), in response to question 15 (a), said that
under article 10 (1) of the new Constitution, which had entered into force

in 1997, a clear distinction was drawn between the powers of the Executive and
the powers of the Judiciary. Under article 45, the principle of the

i ndependence and inpartiality of the Judiciary was established. That article
| ai d down that judges should be fully independent and subject only to the
Constitution and the law, and that they could be appointed only by the

Presi dent of Poland on the reconmendation of the National Council of the
Judiciary; their termof office was indefinite. Judges could only be

di sm ssed, or noved to a different area of jurisdiction, on the basis of a
court decision. They were entitled to conditions of enploynment and to

sal aries comensurate with their position. Restrictions were placed only on
those of their rights considered inconpatible with the i ndependence of the
Judiciary, notably the right to join political parties or trade unions.

45. In response to question 15 (b), she said that on 6 June 1997 a new

Code of Crimnal Procedure had been adopted; it had entered into force

on 1 Septenber 1998, replacing the Code of 1969. That nmarked the end of an
ext ensi ve process of reformof Polish crimnal law, bringing it into line with
the needs of a nodern denpcratic State. The changes nmade were of great

i nportance in the context of article 14 of the Covenant. Thus, in relation to
article 14, paragraph 1, only the court could decide to deprive a person of
liberty, and only the judge, not the prosecutor, could decide to put a suspect
under psychiatric observation. Decisions taken by the prosecutor in the
course of pre-trial proceedings could now be appealed to the court, and

t el ephone conversations could be tapped only followi ng a court order

46. In regard to article 14, paragraph 2, under the new Code the suspect was
presuned i nnocent. Regarding article 14, paragraph 3, a suspect was now
entitled to be inforned of his rights before being questioned, including the
right to contact a solicitor and to be questioned in the solicitor's presence.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 9

The new Code had al so enl arged the scope of the so-called “obligatory defence”
to cover cases where the accused did not speak Polish and al so cases where the
judge considered that circumnmstances required it.

47. Replying to question 15 (c), concerning the tine taken to conplete
crimnal and civil proceedings, she said that in the district crimnal courts
average tinmes had been 4.3 nonths in 1995, 4.8 nonths in 1996 and 5.1 nonths
in 1997. In Warsaw crimnal courts acting as courts of first instance,
average tinmes had been 7.1 nonths in 1995 and 1996 and 8 nmonths in 1997. In
Warsaw crimnal courts acting as courts of second instance, the averages had
been 1.4 nonths in 1995, 1.5 months in 1996, and 1.7 nonths in 1997. In
civil cases in the district courts, the average tinme had been 4.4 nonths

in 1995, 4.3 nonths in 1996 and 5.4 nonths in 1997. |In famly cases in the
same courts the averages had been 2.5 nonths in 1995 and 1996, and 2.6 nonths

in 1997. In civil cases in Warsaw courts acting as courts of first
i nstance, the average tinme had been 9.3 nonths in 1995, 9.6 nonths in 1996,
and 7.8 nmonths in 1997; in Warsaw courts acting as courts of second instance,

the averages had been 1 nonth in 1995, 1.3 nonths in 1996 and 1.6 nonths
in 1997.

48. Replying to question 15 (e) on availability and quality of |egal aid,
she said that in crimnal cases accused persons could only be represented by
solicitors, whose qualifications nust include a degree in |aw, an
apprenticeship of 3 years and 6 nonths, and success in a final qualifying
exam nation. The nunber of solicitors had increased over the past few years
from6,900 in 1990 to 7,260 in 1997. Accused persons could al so be
represented before the courts by counsellors in all cases except crimnal and
famly cases. Counsellors nust fulfil the same requirenments as solicitors.

49. M . KRASNODEBSKI (Poland), replying to question 16, said that procedures
for tapping private tel ephones, including the eventual destruction of
recordi ngs made, were regulated by the Mnistry of the Interior in
coordination with other mnistries. The principle of the right to privacy was
laid down in article 49 of the Constitution, and violation of that right was
puni shabl e under article 267 of the Penal Code. Tapping was only authorized
in certain circunstances defined by law. It could be used by the police in
pre-trial proceedings, provided that the objective was to prevent, or to

di scover, a serious crinme. Serious crimes included crinmes against the person

illegal trade, illegal possession of weapons, bribery of public officials and
counterfeiting. Tapping could only be extended for a certain period, after
whi ch a second application for authorization had to be nade. Information on

citizens gained by clandestine police operations could only be made avail abl e
to the court at the request of the prosecutor, and only in crimna
proceedi ngs.

50. M. LEWANDOWSKI (Poland), in response to the questions in paragraph 18
on the exercise of religious freedom said that under article 53 of the
Constitution all persons on Polish territory were guaranteed freedom of
expression and freedom of worship. Everyone had the right to belong to the
Church or religious association of his choice. Registration did not inply the
| egal i zation of any particular religion: it was rather intended to give |ega
personality to the Church or association in question in order to enable it,
for instance, to contract obligations.




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 10

51. Under article 25 of the Constitution, all Polish Churches were equal

but some operated on a different |egal basis fromothers. Thus, the Catholic
Church was regul ated by an international concordat, while the rel ationship of
the State with other Churches and with religious associations was regul ated by
Polish law. Under article 36 of the Constitution, the public prosecutor could
require investigations to be carried out into the legality of a Church or
association. |If the court ruled that the activities of such a body were
illegal, its nane nust be deleted fromthe register

52. Ms. DABROW ECKA (Pol and), in response to question 19, said Polish press
I aw di d not inpose any restrictions on the registration of newspapers and
magazines: in her view, the requirenent that applications for registration
nmust be made to a court could not be said to constitute a restriction
Applications were only rejected if, for instance, they failed to supply the
name of an editor and the address of a publishing office, or if they infringed
copyright. |If the court failed to deal with the application within a period
of 40 days, the applicant was entitled to commence publication

53. The Radi o Broadcasting and Tel evi sion Act required that progranmes
shoul d respect the religious beliefs of their listeners, especially Christian
val ues. The word “especially”, while reflecting the special place of
Christian culture and tradition in Polish society, was intended only as an
exanple. In 1994 the Constitutional Court had ruled that that requirenent did
not in fact anount to censorship. It had also ruled that the requirenment that
Christian values should be respected did not inply any obligation to propagate
t hem

54. Polish | aws prohibiting the defamati on of public authorities had often
been criticized as an infringenent of the right to free speech. Under the
new Penal Code, sentences for that offence had been reduced from8 to 2 years,
and only defamation of the President or of the constitutional organs of

t he Republic was now consi dered punishable. Between 1990 and 1996,

only 12 persons had been sentenced for the offence. Even under the old Code,
the Supreme Court had ruled that the |aw could not be interpreted as limting
ri ghts defined under international instrunments.

55. Ms. KOMLSKA, replying to question 21, said that a new bill setting up
the | ong-awai ted Onbudsman for Children's Rights had recently been introduced.
It was hoped that the Onbudsman woul d begin work 1 January 2000.

56. Ms. DABROW ECKA (Pol and), said that under article 60 of the Constitution
access to public service in Poland was guaranteed for all. There were no
requi renments for entering the service based on political affiliation or
gender, which would be contrary to the | aw, candidates were only required to
be Polish citizens with no crimnal record and to be of high noral standing.
Pol es had the right to vote fromthe age of 18 and the right to stand for

el ection fromthe age of 21

57. Replying to question 23, she said that the new Constitution guaranteed
equal treatment for all by the public authorities and prohibited
discrimnation of any kind. Simlar provisions were also included in specific
| aws, such as the Law on Freedom of Conscience, the Labour Code and the Law on
Educati on. The new Penal Code specifically prohibited acts of violence or



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 11

threats agai nst persons belonging to minority groups or holding mnority
political views, and also outlawed all forns of hate propaganda on

grounds of ethnicity or race. Sixteen persons had been sentenced for

et hnical ly-noti vated crinmes between 1992 and 1994 conpared with 4 and 3,
respectively in 1995 and 1996, and pre-trial proceedings in 15 such cases had
been reported for 1998. Prejudice-related crinmes, whose overall nunmber was
m nimal, were strongly condemed by public opinion, the media and the public
authorities. Further details were to be found in Poland s August 1997 report
to the Commttee on the Elimnation of Racial Discrimnation

58. M. LEWANDOASKI (Poland), replying to question 24, said that Poland did
not keep statistics on citizens who declared thenselves to be nenbers of a
national mnority; the figures he could supply were therefore based on
estimates by the Parliamentary Conmission for Mnority Affairs. At present,
there were between 900,000 and 1, 095,000 Polish citizens, or 2.3 to

2.9 per cent of the popul ation, who considered thensel ves to be nenbers of
national mnorities. That total included between 350,000 and 450, 000 Ger mans,
250, 000 to 300,000 Wkrainians and Wends, 250,000 to 300, 000 Ruthenians, 20, 000
to 25,000 Romm, 15,000 to 20,000 Lithuanians, 10,000 to 15,000 Sl ovaks

and 8,000 to 10,000 Jews. There were also between 2,000 and 3,000 Czechs,
8,000 Arnenians, 2,000 Tatars and about 5,000 Greeks and Macedoni ans. Al
those mnorities had the right to their own educational and cultura

i nstitutions and organi zations for the preservation of their religious
identity, as well as the right to participate in the decision-making

process concerning their cultural identity. They currently had

about 220 organi zations, including |ocal branches, and published a |arge
nunber of newspapers, many of which were subsidized by the Mnistry of
Culture. It should be noted that the 5 per cent rule in the Electoral Law
could be derogated fromin the case of mnority candidates. At present there
were two nenbers of parlianment representing the German mnority, as well as
several others belonging to ethnic minorities who represented different
political parties. All the above rules applied equally to the Rona, and a
speci al educational programme for children belonging to that mnority had been
in operation since 1992.

59. Ms. JANI SZEWSKA (Pol and), replying to the first part of question 25,
said that the text of Poland's third periodic report had been issued by the

M nistry of Justice in the formof a general publication, including a summary
of the proceedi ngs before the Human Rights Committee; the same procedure woul d
be followed in respect of the present report. The Comrittee's reconmendati ons
had been forwarded for action to the appropriate mnistries and ot her bodies.
Replying to the second part of the question, she said that human rights

subj ects were being increasingly included in educational syllabuses. Regular
courses on human rights were provided at universities and in vocationa

trai ning and special courses on human rights were given to groups of public
officials, judges, Mnistry of Justice staff and police cadets. By a decision
taken in Decenber 1998, the Chief of Police had appointed a special officia

to take charge of the incorporation of human rights subjects in the training
of police and prison officers, including nedical personnel




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 12

60. The CHAI RPERSON invited members to ask additional questions on the
second part of the list of issues; because of the shortage of tine, the

del egation could, if it so wished, provide its answers in witing by m dday
on 23 July.

61. M. BHAGMTI expressed appreciation of the steps taken to strengthen
human rights in Poland since the consideration of the (third) periodic report,
and remarked that it would have been of considerable help to the Commttee if
information in the report under consideration had been updated in witing. In
particular, if a citizen wanted to chall enge a donmestic | aw on the grounds of
its inconsistency with the Covenant, could he now approach the Constitutiona
Court directly? |If not, what other court was conpetent to deal with such
matters?

62. Noting that, according to paragraph 37 of the report, the State of
Emergency Act of 5 Decenmber 1983 still remained in force, he asked whether the
Act contained any provisions which derogated from any right under the
Covenant .

63. Wth regard to the conposition of the Judiciary, he asked whether judges
appoi nted under the old regi ne had been replaced and, if some of them rennined
in office, what steps had been taken to reorient their attitude towards human
rights. Information concerning the appointnment of judges provided in the core
docunent (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 25/ Rev. 1) differed considerably fromthat in the
fourth report, possibly because of changes which had taken place in the
meantime. What was the conposition of the National Council of the Judiciary?
And what was the basis for the Council's recommendati ons concerning the

appoi ntnment of judges to the President? Wre those recomrendati ons binding on
the President? What authority could hold inquiries into any m sconduct by
judges with a viewto their renoval ? What disciplinary proceedi ngs could be
taken in such a case? And how many judges had been renoved during the past
few years as a result of a disciplinary inquiry?

64. Referring to the question of conscientious objection (Covenant,

art. 18), he said that, according to information received from NGOs, the draft
| aw anendi ng the present law on mlitary service, already adopted by the D et
and currently before the Senate, reduced the |length of alternative service
from24 to 21 nonths and that of mlitary service from 18 to 12 nonths. The
striking disproportion between the two sets of figures suggested that

consci enti ous objectors were being punished for their views, which would be
contrary to resolutions of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts and the

Eur opean Parlianent. What steps were being taken to amend the draft law in
that respect? Furthernore, he understood that applications for alternative
servi ce nust be nade before receiving call-up papers. Since conscientious
objection could arise at any tinme, including during mlitary service, that
part of the |law, too, should be amended.

65. Wth regard to article 14, he said that according to NGO reports, the
fact that litigants lived a long way fromthe nearest court in sonme parts of
Pol and, as well as lack of courtroons in many pl aces, rendered access to the
courts very difficult and accounted for serious delays in judicia

proceedi ngs. He had been pleased to hear fromthe del egation that the I ength



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 13

of proceedi ngs had been substantially reduced, but wondered what steps had
been taken to inprove the court infrastructure. Lastly, he asked for
i nformati on on arrangenents for free legal aid to needy persons.

66. Ms. CHANET, referring to article 9, noted that an arrested person could
be held in police custody for 48 hours. Before what judge were such persons
brought at the end of that period? And were they held i ncommuni cado during
the period or could they have contacts with the outside world, including with
a lawer and, if necessary, a doctor? She gathered that if, at the end of the
48 hours, a judge decided to place the arrested person in pre-trial detention
such detention could not last |onger than two years. But what if the eventua
sentence was for less than two years? Wre there any possibilities of
periodic review for pre-trial detainees? The Comrmittee would need to see the
text of the new Code of Crimnal Procedure.

67. She was concerned to note that the Constitution contained no provision
for rights under article 14 of the Covenant except for the presunption of

i nnocence. Noting that article 184 of the Constitution contained a provision
concerning the removal of judges, she asked who was the judge that judged

ot her judges. Referring to information just given by a nenber of the

del egation concerning the length of judicial proceedings, she remarked that it
was strikingly inconsistent with figures appearing in NGO reports, and asked
for further explanations. Lastly, referring to article 18, she noted that al
the Churches reported to have established a relationship with the Polish State
were Christian ones, and asked for information about the status of

non- Christian religions and, especially, the Jewi sh faith.

68. M. AMOR also referring to article 18, asked whether and to what extent
the Polish State was influenced by the Roman Catholic religion, especially
regardi ng the status of wonen, contraception and abortion. Noting that
Churches and religious associations in Poland could be charged with

i nvol verent in illegal activities, he asked whether any Polish court had had
occasi on to define the nmeaning of the concept of religion. Didit apply to
all creeds w thout exception, including new religious novenents? Wth regard
to the rights of conscientious objectors, he associated hinself with

M. Bhagwati's conment that the draft |aw providing for 21 nonths of
alternative service as against 12 nmonths of mlitary service appeared to have
a punitive character.

69. M. ZAKHI A asked for figures showi ng recent devel opnents with regard to
the representation of women in governnent, the |iberal professions,
universities, etc. Had any quotas been introduced in that respect? He would
al so appreciate informati on about any nmeasures adopted to protect wonen, in
particul ar against the white-slave trade in or through Polish territory.
Lastly, he asked whether equality of rights existed between children born in
and out of wedl ock.

70. M. POCAR, recalling that the third periodic report had indicated that
Polish mlitary courts would in future try only mlitary offences, asked

whet her that change had in fact taken place. On the question of mnorities,
he noted that reference had been made only to national or ethnic mnorities
but not to linguistic or religious ones. He would appreciate nore informtion
about the protection of linguistic and religious mnorities as such, and in



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1765
page 14

that connection drew the delegation's attention to the Conmttee's genera
comment 23 on article 27, and in particular paragraph 5 (2) of the genera
comrent .

71. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the Polish del egati on and expressed the hope
that its replies in witing to the additional questions would be submtted in
due course.

72. M. BORUSEW CZ (Pol and) thanked nenbers for their interest and prom sed
that all their comments would receive the necessary attention fromhis
Government, which was eager to cooperate closely with the Comrittee and with
all NGCs active in the field of human rights.

The neeting rose at 6.15 p.m




